Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees

Chairman Vice Chairman Secretary/Treasurer Trustee Trustee
Dale Dunham Robert Stulac Vicky Lufrano Russ Siegman Robert Garcia
July 19, 2023

Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.
District Board Room
3394 James Lee Park Road
Carson City, NV
89705
(775) 267-2805

MISSIONSTATEMENT
The Mission of the District is to provide, within its Charter, those public facilities and services which
maintain and improve the quality of life of its resident families and to maintain and operate those
facilities and services at the highest quality and in the most cost-effective manner possible, with the
intent to continue to do so for a growing population of residents.

It is the intent of the Board of Trustees 1o protect the dignity of citizens who wish to comment before the Board. It
is also the Board of Trustees’ wish to provide the citizens of the district with an environment that upholds the
highest professional standards.

In order to ensure thal every citizen desiring to speak before the Board has the opportunity to express his/her
opinion, it is requested that the audience refrain from making comments, hand clapping or making any remarks or
gestures that may interrupt, interfere, or prevent the speaker from commenting on any present or future project.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, IHGID is prohibited from discriminating on
the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To
file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W._,
Washington, D.C. 20250-94 10, or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity
provider, employer, and lender.

Communication for Hearing Impaired: Nevada Relay Service is available by calling 711. The TTY or HCO
(hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868, Voice only is 800-326-6888, VCO (voice carry over) is
800-326-4013.

Notice to Persons with Disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special assistance or
accommaodations at the meeting are requested o notify the District Office in writing at 3394 James Lee Park Road,
Carson City, NV 89705, or by calling 267-2805 at least 24 hours in advance.

Following is the Agenda, which is also posted on IHGID's website at: www.indianhillsnevada.com



AGENDA

6:00 P.M. — Regular Meeting

1.

2.

3.

Call to Order - Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Pledge of Allegiance

Public Interest Comment (No Action)

The public may comment on any subject that is pertinent to IHGID. The public may comment on any item that is on
this agenda at the time it is discussed. Therefore, the public is encouraged and permitted to make comments on any
non-agenda items during the public interest comment period. Comments may be limited by the discretion of the
Chair and may not exceed three (3) minutes. Please note that the Board is prohibited by law from deliberating or
taking action on issues raised by the public that are not listed on this agenda.

7.

Approval of Agenda-Chairman

Items on this agenda may be taken out of order. Two or more agenda items may be combined
for consideration. Any item appearing on this agenda may be removed, or its discussion
delayed at any time.

Discussion and possible action to approve a quote in the amount of $8,330.00 from Eclipse
Mapping and GIS.
(General Manager, Chris Johnson)

e Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
® Close Public Comment

Reports to the Board:

a. General Manager Report

1. Administrative

2. Water

3. Wastewater
b. District Accountant Report
c. Engineer Report

d. Attorney Report

e Board of Trustees Discussion
* Open Public
e (lose Public Comment

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the June 21, 2023, Board
Meeting.

e Board of Trustees Discussion
e Open Public Comment
e Close Public Comment




8. Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence
Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications received
by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the district. No
action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request such an item or topic
be placed on a future agenda.

9. Adjournment

This agenda is posted at www.indianhillsnevada.com, https://notice.nv.gov and at the following locations:
District Main Office, 3394 James Lee Park Road

As of 8:30 A M., July 14, 2023, by Z ey




AGENDA ITEM 5.

Discussion and possible action to approve a
quote in the amount of $8,330.00 from Eclipse
Mapping and GIS.

(General Manager, Chris Johnson)



»  Eclipse Mapping and GIS
6?93 P pping

2355 Westwood Blvd #1270

QUOTE

Los Angeles, CA 90064 DATE 6/14/2023
Website: eclipsemapping.com QUOTE # 606407
Phone: 310 882 3491 CUSTOMER ID
VALID UNTIL 12/14/2023
Prepared by: Isaiah Mack
CUSTOMER
indian Hills General Improvement District
Nevada
(775) 267-2805
DESCRIPTION TAXED AMOUNT
Eos Arrow Gold GNSS Kit 7,995.00
includes hard case, pole mountable groundplane,
Eos pole mount kit, antenna cables,
Wall Charger, battery, 2yr HW warranty
2 meter new ultralight carbon fiber pole 225.00
Rugged pole bracket for phone 50.00
Subtotal 8,270.00
Texable :
1. Customer will be invoiced after items ship Tax rate
Tax due -
shipping 60.00
iCustomer Acceptance (sign below): TOTAL 5 8,330.00

Signature:

iPrint Name:

L

If you have any questions about this price quote, please contact
Isaiah Mack, 310 882 3491, imack@eclipsemapping.com

Thank You For Your Business!




AGENDA ITEM 6a.

Reports to the Board:
a. General Manager Report
1. Administrative

2. Water
3. Wastewater



General Manager Report July 19, 2023

The Summer Kickoff party was a success. We served over 100 people, played games, and
celebrated the 50" Anniversary of Indian Hills General Improvement District. Thank you,
Trustee Stulac, Katherine, and Linda, for their volunteer time!

Our new GIS is set up, and we are building maps. We're learning as we go, but we’re learning
quick. This is going to be a huge asset to the district.

Chairman Dunham came by my office, and we walked over to the dog park to start some
planning. We looked at the entrance to the park and he’s going to design the brick layout in the
entrance to the park.

The Tennis Court company will be out to look at the courts this week, | told him that we want to
begin ASAP, so we should be getting the courts done soon.

I have requested quotes for the crosswalk flashers, and many have gotten back to me that they
are out of stock. The company that we purchased our new speed sign from also produces the
crosswalk flashers. | should have a quote back from them by the time of this meeting.

Administrative Report July 19, 2023

The ACH program continues to be well received. Residents are thankful the district has
implemented this option for payments. We currently have 530, 26.23% of residents taking
advantage of automatic withdrawal. We continue to receive requests and new authorization
forms daily.

In June we sent out forty-nine past-due bills resulting in three disconnections. Al accounts have
since paid in full, and service has been restored.

The district's Gazebo reservations are picking up in anticipation of the summer months with
seven reservations for James Lee Park Gazebo, and three for North Sunridge Park Gazabo in
June. We had eight tennis court reservations in March and 8 in April.

We had eleven new account sign ups in June. These are homes that have changed ownership.
We continue to optimistically recruit for the Utility Billing Coordinator. The advertisement has

been posted for about a month. We have a received few applications but are eager to get
more. We hope to conduct interviews by the end of July.



Water Department Report July 2023

Water Quality:

- The Bac-T sample results for June 2023 came back good.
- The Hobo water plant received 24.5 MG of (Minden) water for the month of June.

- North Well pumped 2.3 MG and South Well pumped 2.6 MG of water for the month of
June.

- Ridgeview Well pumped 2.6 MG of water for May.
- Hobo well has been turned back on and is sending water to the golf course.

Water Plant Rounds:
Every morning all operations of the Water plant are checked. Morning rounds consist of,

» The water level and operation of all water storage tanks are checked and recorded.
- The water pressure at the plant and off-site booster stations is checked and recorded.
- All flow and totalizer meters are checked, and the amount of water used is recorded.

- The booster pumps at the plant are checked for proper voltage and current. They are also
checked for excessive temperatures at bearings and checked for any water leaks. All
information is recorded.

- Water samples are taken from the plant, and we check the water for proper chlorine
residual and calibrate the chlorine analyzer as needed. We also check the water for PH,
clarity, and temperature. All information is recorded.

- Trends of the water system are checked through SCADA. Checking these trends for
anomalies in the distribution system can give us an early warning of future problems.

Maintenance: .
- The Water department excavated a water meter pit at 862 Meadow Vista due to a broken
meter pit coil. This repair required the removal of a sidewalk panel.

- The Water department excavated a water meter pit at 3551 Silverado Dr. due to a leak on
the meter pit coil in the pit. This repair required the removal of a sidewalk panel.

- The Water department installed washer and dryer hook ups at the water plant and
installed a new washer and dryer. We can now wash our uniforms on site in case we get
splashed with sewer or covered in mud from repairing leaks.



Wastewater Department Report July 2023

1: Treatment plant: We are continuing to diagnose a low flow issue with the solid handling
sludge pump house. We have rebuilt the #1 disc pump. We are hoping a pump rebuild will solve
the flow issues. We also flushed the suction and discharge piping. We have improved flow from
17 GPM to 20-21 GPM.

| have a new monitoring well sample pump after the old one failed. We also ordered a backup
pump.

The #1 motor and blower have been picked up from Sparks Electric Motor Repair and we are
close to having the blower back in operation.

Ryan has set up our new spray rig and is spraying weeds like a madman.

| prepped our swamp cooler with new pads and a recirc pump and put it in operation for the
summer.

Ryan and | have dragged the roads on a regular basis, especially after any rain.

2. Lift Stations: Sierra Controls has completed the Lift 2 PLC and control upgrade. This has
proved to be reliable. We have a punch list for emergency generator status for Lift stations and
WWTP that need to be addressed.

Ryan replaced a bad vent fan at Lift station 4.

All 4 lift stations continue to perform satisfactorily.

3: Sewer Collection: Ryan inspected problem manholes and is editing the list as needed. He is
up to date on manhole flushing.

Continue weekly check of sewer hot spots (manholes that develop above average grease
buildup) and physically pulling sewer lids, checking for flow, debris, root intrusion and
confirming locations in relation to our plot maps. This ongoing maintenance of the sewer
system has been very successful;, we have identified potential problems long before they
develop into messy situations.



AGENDA ITEM 6bh.

Reports to the Board:

b. District Accountant Report



INDIAN HILLS GID
CASH BALANCES
AS OF 6/30/23

CASH BALANCES

Operating
Reserved from rate increase
Reserved for streets
Reserved Donations
Reserved for water tank
Operating Available

Payroll

Money Market
Reserve for Infrastructure
Reserve for Connections
Reserve for storm water mgt
Reserve for sewer debt reserves
Reserve for short lived assets

Money Market Available

Pipeline
Reserve for USDA debt service
Reserve for O&M
Reserve for short lived assets
Reserve for AB198 capital repl
Reserve for construction
Pipeline Available

Total
Investment Pool
IHGID
IHCIP (2m 2007 Bonds)
Drinking Revenue Bond
Total

$ 5,723,998.26
$ 2,502,022.24
$1,376,314.42
$ 2,691.17
$  29,030.05

6/30/2023

$ 3,940,254.17
$ 670,348.42
$ 547,206.66
$ 4100561
$ 66,572.60
$ 4528520

568,152.10
40,284.00
67,941.82

325,285.45

118,293.28
16,347.55

LRI oA

$
$

1,813,940.38

21,284.87

$ 2,579,835.68

$ .
$ 4,415,060.93

9,015.83
125,830.00
260,643.13

$
3
$
$

395,488.96



INDIAN HILLS GID

CASH BALANCES BY FUND

6/30/2023
CASH BALANCES 6/30/2023
WATER SEWER ADMIN
Operating 1,423,902.35 2,176,273.64 2,123,822.27
Reserved from rate increase 1,232,994 39 1,269,027.85
Reserved for streets 100,000.00 1,276,314.42
Reserved Donations 2,691.17
Reserved for water tank 29,030.05
Operating Available 61,877.91 907,245.79 844,816.68
Money Market 1,232,582.58 1,449,563.27 1,258,108.32
Reserve for Infrastructure 188,566.39 207,546.96 274,235.07
Reserve for Connections 283,863.33 263,343.33
Reserve for storm water mgt 41,005.61
Reserve for sewer debt service 56,572.60
Reserve for sewer short lived assets 45285.20
Money Market Available 760,152.86 876,815.18 942,867.64
Pipeline 568,152.10
Reserve for debt service (fully funded) 40,284.00
Reserve for O&M 67,941.82
Reserve for short lived assets 325,285.45
Reserve for AB198 capital replacement 118,293.28
Reserve for construction 16,347.55
0.00
TOTAL AVAILABLE 822,030.77 1,784,060.97 1,787,684.32



INDIAN HILLS GID

ATTORNEY EXPENSES
JUNE 2023
MONTHLY FEE 3,000.00
EXPENSES 33.90
TOTAL 3,033.90

/10



%l5¢
%STE
%SLC
%00°%

%9%'€

0c0e/L/L
LS02/1/8
Zs0c/L/L
920e/Li L

9¢0d/L/L

3lvd  INJWAVd

1S343LNI

TYNId

AlInr pue uer enp go'srE OV
ATHLNOW 00°/6¢€'€
ATHLNOW 80°'bSL'v

AON pue Aey anp e

440 divd

Ainr pue uer enp 2£°022'6S

440 Qivd

sallea junowe juawiied .,
{43MIS %S9 “HILYM %SE) »

INIWAVd

£V L6V'812° $
G9's06'cls $ d1V1S 0102 INIT3dId
6LL0ECr. $ ININ3did vasn
62086'6CL'L $ HIM3S vasn
00'000'6SS  $ »  (ONOS 2002 ¥3IMISAHILVM
- $ aNOS 6661 ¥3IM3S
02¢e€e'18C ¢ aINOY €002 ¥3LYM
- $ aNO8g 000Z H31VM
JONVIVE idg3ad
£C/0E/9 40 SY

1930 WY3L ONOT
aio STIIH NVIANI



INDIAN HILLS GID
ENGINEERING EXPENSES

JUNE 2023
Engineering Fees 2,000.00
Yard Improvements 500.00

2,500.00

I



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
CRICKET/VERIZON
GRANT INCOME
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS
TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION)

** Reserves from rate reserves used to fund SCADA improvements

WATER
(OVER)/ 100.00%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER
1,365,000.00 1,442,575.22 (77,575.22) 105.68%
82,080.00 30,780.00 51,300.00 37.50%
12,441.60 12,441.60 0.00 100.00%
0.00 275.20 (275.20) 0.00%
2,000.00 10,955.04 (8,955.04} 547.75%
0.00 6,260.20 (6,260.20) 0.00%
1,461,521.60 1,503,287.26 (41,765.66) 102.86%
393,355.78 362,932.02 30,423.76 92.27%
461,125.00 454,161.65 6,963.35 98.49%
230,883.66 233,525.29 {2,641.63) 101.14%
62,707.23 71,549.58 (8,842.35) 114.10%
108,000.00 138,662.70 {(30,662.70) 128.39%
1,256,071.67 1,260,831.24 (4,759.57) 100.38%
205,449.93 242,456.02 {37,006.09)
551,000.00 534,578.58 16,421.42 97.02%



INCOME

EXPENSES

NON-CASH:

INDIAN HILLS GID

REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

FEES

CONNECTION FEES
INTEREST
MISCELLANEOUS

TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
DEBT PRINCIPAL
DEBT INTEREST
CAPITAL QUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT (LOSS)

infrastructure depletion {DEPRECIATION)

SEWER
(OVER)/ 100.00%
BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
968,000.00 1,093,522.50 (125,522.50) 112.97%
82,080.00  30,780.00  51,300.00  37.50%
25.00 165.10 (140.10) 660.40%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
1,050,105.00 1,124,467.60  (74,362.60) 107.08%
389,257.95  353,281.58  35976.37  90.76%
211,675.00 200,880.97  10,794.03  94.90%
110,136.39  110,136.39 0.00  100.00%
47,532.57  43,880.62 3,651.95  92.32%
262,000.00 163,000.37  98,999.63  62.21%
1,020,601.91 871,179.93 14942198  85.36%
29,503.09 253,287.67  (223,784.58)
378,000.00  369,843.73 8,156.27  97.84%



INCOME

EXPENSES

ADMIN

PARKS

STREETS

NON-CASH:

infrastructure depletion (DEPRECIATION])

AD VALOREM

DOUGLAS CO. CONSOLIDATED TAX

PARK REV
GRANT
DONATIONS
MISCELLANEOUS
INTEREST
STORM WATER
TOTAL REV

SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
CAPITAL QUTLAY
SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
CAPITAL OUTLAY
SALARIES/BENEFITS
OPERATING EXP
CAPITAL OUTLAY

TOTAL EXP

PROFIT

INDIAN HILLS GID
REVENUE AND EXPENSE

NOT INCLUDING DEPRECIATION
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

GENERAL

(OVER)/ 100.00%

BUDGET ACTUAL UNDER %
1,066,626.00 1,160,701.97  (94,075.97) 108.82%
382,383.00 399,073.15 (16,690.15) 104.36%
500.00 559.00 (59.00) 111.80%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
1,600.00 5,137.29 (3,537.29) 321.08%
21,200.00 21,905.00 (705.00) 103.33%
1,472,309.00 1,587,376.41 (115,067.41) 107.82%
88,155.74 82,534.29 5,621.45 93.62%
223,550.00 185,808.01 37,741.99 83.12%
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00%
215,749.98 137,946.79 77,803.19 63.94%
148,725.00 138,574.07 10,150.93 93.17%
24,000.00 0.00 24,000.00 0.00%
197,349.98 147,493.45 49,856.53 74.74%
93,175.00 65,709.22 27,465.78 70.52%
427,000.00 0.00 427,000.00 0.00%
1,417,705.70 758,065.83  659,639.87 53.47%

54,603.30 829,310.58 (774,707.28)

300,700.00 294,634.73 6,065.27 97.98%

/5



LrgoL’'siy ¢ (SSOTIWOODNI | v 6L 1eL’L $ SNVO1 WLOL [22°0£0°2Z6$ 31aVHVAY TV10L
00°0$
mm.hvm.w —.m uoIoNJISUQD IO} aalasay
gzeez'elLls  wawaoeldal |e)ded g6 gy J0) 2AUISRY
St'S8T'G2ES S]3SSE PaAI| LOYS 10} 8A1983Y
Z8'1P6°298 WSO Jo} aA1883Y
66'S0€°220°L $ SISNIAX3 WV1OL 00 ¥82'0v$ (papuny AjIny) 821A19S JG8p 10} BAISSDY
0.299'8EL ¢ AepnQ jended 0L'Z51'896% auladid
8G'6¥S'LlL  $ dx3 1s0I19U|
6o'L9L'PSy ¢ dx3 Bunesedo
20'2¢6'29¢ ¢ sjyousg/sauees
98°251'092$ a|qepeay e Leuop
mm.mmm.mmww SUONIBUUOD 0] BAIDSTY
mm.wom_mw _.w 2JNoNJIsSelu] 10} DAIRSIY
90°ZL0°¢0S'L $§  INNIATY TVLIOL 86786262 L% 193ep ASUo
020929 ¢ awodu| oSIN
09'L¥¥eL ¢ UOZUBA
¥0'666'01L$ 1s8.9U| GOGO6'ELS $ 9jels aulpdid
00'082'0£$ sog) uogoauUUOD | 627208'2VL $ vasnounedid  |1L6°228°1918 ajgepeay Buyesado
1£'802'G1$ s89} 9je] 00'05Z'¥61L ¢ (%SE) ZLOZ-puod Jalep  [G0°0£0'62% yUe) J9IEM IO} POAIBSAY
£TGLE'SEE ¢ s994 ajey aseg 0.g€e'182 $ £00Z-puod JOlepA  |6€'766'2€2° LS asesIou) Sje) WOol) paniasay
Z9'i55's8y ¢ saa4 188N - $ 000Z-puog Jalep,  |SEC06'Eey LS Bunesado
SISNAdX3 / SANNIATY SIONVIVE NYO S3IONVIVE HSVYD

€202/0¢/9

AYYINIANS ANNd d31VM

aio S1IH NVIANI

=



90'¥Zb'eos ¢  (SSOT) ANWOINI 62°002'98%°L $ SNVO11VLOL [26°090'¥82'L$ FIGVIIVAY TV.L0L
8L'518'9.8% ajqepieAy jox.e Asuop

S Er0'19L $ SISNIJIXT TVLOL

Z£000'€9L AenQ (enden

29088'cr ¢ dx3 1s248)U] 02'S8Z'STe S]9$SE POAI| LIOYS JaMas 10) SAIBSaY

16°088'00C $ dx3 Bunesado 09'2.5'95% BOIAISS 1qBP JOMIS 1O} DAIBSY

86'187'¢sE ¢ sjjauag/salieles £C'EPE'C9TS SUONJBUUOD J0} 9AIFSDY
@m.m.vm_ NONW ainjaniiselju| Joj aalasay
LTE95'6vP LS oxiep Asuow

09°29%'FZL'L$  INN3IATN TVLOL

00°0$ awooul osIiN 62°5¥Z'206$ ajqe|ieAy Bupeiado

0L'S9L$ 1sassu|

00'082'0¢$ S99} UolJBULOY 62°056'GZL'L $ puoq Jamas vasn

Z£'802'GL$ $99) 9)€7 00°052'09¢ ¢ (%G9) ZL0Z-puog 1omesS  |G8'/20'692'L$ 9SES.0U| S)BI WO POAISSIY

8L'¥18°2.0'L% sa94 Jasn = $ 666L-puog Jamas  |¥9'€/2'9/1'2$ Bunesado

SASNALX3 / SANNIAIY SIONVIVE NVOT SIDNVIVE HSVD

€202/0¢/9
AMYININNS ANNd ¥3M3S
alo ST7IH NVIANI

[7



85'01£'628%

£8'690'85.$

00°0%
0£°160'06€$
€Sv.6'29¢%

Ly'9.¢°285'L$

00°0%

00°0$
62°2£1°G$
00°655$
26'10L°09L°L$
gl'e.0'66€$
00'G06°L2$

(8$07) IWOONI

S3SN3dX3 V.10l

AepnQ |eyded
dx3 Bunesado
sjyauag/salees

ANNIATYH VL0l

snosue|2a2sIN
paAIg0a) puny JUBID
aLU0oU] 1818
S984 UONESIORY
XE ). WSIOEA pY
Xe] palepiosuo)

2e¥89°282°13

$9°298'Z¥6$

19600 L¥$
FLiReiord JXAS

Ze'801'852'LS

89°918'vP8$

SIASNAdX3 / SINNIAIY

L1'169'C$
crvieeLTLS

ATGVIIVAVY TVLOL

ajqeeay joxse Aauop

16W Jajem wWiols Jo) anssay
SINJONISBIU| JO) SAISSIY

1Ie Asuop

a|qepeay bunelado
suoneuoq 10} paaasay
$)924)S JoJ) paAlasay

S99} Jajlem WI0IS 12TT8'€T1'T$ Bugesado
NINavY
S$IDONVIVE HSVYD
£202Z/0¢/9
(W3¥OTVA av)

AUVININNS S1331S ‘SHAVd ‘NINaY
ai© ST7H NVIANI

/8



10'seT'vLe
00'GEE'EET
00°0S2'€ST
00°055'6L¢
00°0g9'G61
00°0S¥'€LL
00°05€ 2yl
00'88G'€T
00'969'c6
0026679
00'98¥'LE
0000681

000

saln)ipusdxs parcsdde 10} WS} S9SN am SE 9SBAITDP SSLIISLUOS [|IM SJUNOWE aAISSDY

S3A¥3S3Y Hd3a
Ninavy

96°9¥5'£02 68'220'69C'1L
00°/€€'281 00'6Er'88L'L
00°LE¥'SOL 00°0£0°€20°L
00°LE6'EV 00'S5¥C'664
00°/89°¢C1 00'501°68S
00°289°€0L 00°'.86'98€
00°289'G8 00€958'122
00°'169'69 00'251'66
00°9YS'vL 00'¥9€°L2
00°'¥56°65 000
00'vL8'op 000
ooole'Le 000
00005°22 000
S3AYISIY Id3d  S3IAHISIY ALVH
HILVMILSYM

£€202-1102 WOuA

6€'99G'881 BE PB6'ZET') £202/0€/9
00'0.£'901 00'89Y'9LL L Z20T/0E/9
00'028'v9lL 00°LbT'1Z6 120Z/0€/9
00'1Z8'EEL 00'¥8F'€29 0Z02/0E/9
000202k 00'998'9/ 61L02/0€/9
00'829'¥6 00'250'c8¥ 8102/0€/9
00'829°'¢L 00'v69'292 L10T/I0E/9
00°04L'0L 00'9ee'zeL 91.02/0¢/9
00'vLL'8Y 00°L£9'8E §10Z/0/9
00'005'GL 000 v10Z/0€/9
0096165 000 £102/0€/9
00°00.'0% 000 ZLOZ/0E/9
00°005°22 000 }102/0€/9
SIAYISTIY ¥d3A  S3AYISIH ILvd| 3lva

YILYM

HVIA TVIOSId A8 S3AYISTY HSVD

aio STIH NYIANI

N
T ——



AGENDA ITEM 6c.

Reports to the Board:

c. Engineer Report

A0



AGENDA ITEM 6d.

Reports to the Board:

d. Attorney Report



AGENDA ITEM 7.

Discussion and possible action to approve Draft
Minutes from the June 21, 2023, Board Meeting.

A



Minutes
Indian Hills General Improvement District
Board of Trustees Meeting
District Office
3394 James Lee Park Rd. #A
Carson City, NV 89705
June 21, 2023
Regular Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.

Trustees Present: Chairman Dunham, Vice Chairman Stulac, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano, Trustee
Garcia, and Trustee Siegman.

Trustees Absent: none.

Staff Present: General Manager Chris Johnson and Administrative Services Supervisor/Human
Resources Brooke Thompson.

Others Present: District Counsel Chuck Zumpft, District Engineer Tim Russell, Residents Kathryn
Clark-Ross, Lynn Dement, Ronny Lynch, Bill Eisele, Dale Morlan, Ben and Debbie Walker, Jim
Norton with Warren Reed Insurance. Wayne Carlson with Pool Pact and Collin Sturge with Lumos
and Associates.

6:00P.M. - Regular Meeting

1. Call to Order
Request that Cell Phones and Pagers be turned off for recording purposes.
Chairman Dunham called the meeting to order at 6:00PM.

2. Pledge of Allegiance: Led by Vice Chairman Stulac.

3. Public Interest Comment: Resident Ben Walker at 997 Sunnycrest stated almost every

meeting someone has mentioned the same thing, at the Mica and North Sunridge intersection
it is a very dangerous intersection. Something must be done, if you can’t put a caution sign
maybe a stop sign would be great. Every day someone speeds through it, this is something
that cannot be ignored any longer. A crosswalk would be nice, but a stop sign would work it
is a safety hazard. It is a regular occurrence; it needs to be taken care of. We are limited to
three minutes, that is appropriate, but you should limit yourselves too, you go off on tangents
repeating yourself over and over, stop it, make your point, and then move on.
Resident Lynn Dement stated that she agrees with Ben completely she has been in the
intersection and almost been hit. Lynn statéd that she wants to discuss in South Sunridge park
at the Mica end there was a dead tree, staff removed it, but nothing has ever been done to
clean that up hillside. The hillside is eroding and there are trees where you can see the roots
and some attention needs to be made to clean up that area.

Minutes of the June 21, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-1-

A3



4. Approval of Agenda

Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano motioned to approve the agenda. Trustee Stulac seconded.
Motion carried unanimously.

5. Presentation on Douglas County’s Master Trails Plan.
Brook Adie, Douglas County Assistant Director Community Services introduced herself to
the Board. Brook stated they are working on public outreach as they update the trails master
plan. Brooke introduced Katie Moses with Wood Rodgers; Katie went through the master
plan presentation.

The Board briefly commented on this item.

Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement thanked everyone who is involved in this, all of you that
maintain the trails, thank you. It is a real joy to hike these trails. Lynn asked how common rattle
snakes are in Nevada.

6. Discussion and possible action to approve a renewal proposal from Nevada Public
Agency Insurance Pool (POOL) and approval for payment from fiscal year 2023-2024
funds.

Jim Norton with Warren Reed Insurance and Wayne Carlson with Pool Pact went over the
renewal proposal with the Board.

The Board briefly commented on this item.
Public comment: none

Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano motioned to a renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency
Insurance Pool (POOL) and approval for payment from fiscal year 2023-2024 funds. Trustee
Garcia seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

7. Discussion only regarding discussions and comments made by the Board at the May
Board meeting.
Resident Ronny Lynch read a letter he prepared expressing his issues with the Board and
Chairman Dunham publicly attacking him and telling him he needed to get life alert which
had nothing to do with the meeting or an agenda item and speaking to him like the was a
five-year-old. Ronny also brought up the issue of the Board seeming to have a difficult time
making decisions, discussions going all over the place like a train continuously going off to
la la land and the double standard when it comes to public comment, not being fair and
treating members of the public different. Ronny stated that your behavior is not appropriate
at a public meeting.

The Board briefly commented on this item.

Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated that she couldn’t agree more with some of the
statements that were made. Lynn stated that she thinks the goals of the GID have been lost. It is for
the community and the public to work with the board, the board is to treat them with respect, and

Minutes of the June 21, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
5508

Y



she does not feel like that is how it has been. She agrees with the three minutes for them to speak
but it is good for the board to limit yourselves too. They have heard the same stories over and over
and over again for several months now, you are not campaigning anymore they don’t need to hear
your past history, what you have done, what you did with your neighbors. There is not supposed to
be any communication with the board and public that did not happen at the last meeting. You guys
really need to police yourselves, maybe the attorney can step in when things get out of control. If
you want this to work better, you need to police yourselves a little better.

8. Discussion and possible action to allocate the entire $50,000 Douglas County grant to
James Lee Dog Park.
General Manager Chris Johnson went over amenity ideas with the board. The board
discussed this item.

Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated the agility courses are an awesome idea. Would the
washing station be inside or outside the fenced area? She thinks it needs to be outside where there is
concrete not on the dirt. Lynn stated that she would like a grass area and a shade structure is
awesome for the people but bushes or something to give shade underneath them for the dogs.
Everything is awesome, thank you.

Resident Kathryn Clark-Ross stated tonight is just to allocate money for the James Lee dog park not
setting these ideas in stone. Kathryn stated that her vision is more green trees and grass her dog goes
there to socialize not to work out. There is time to get the details worked out and voted on.

Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano motioned to allocate the entire $50,000 Douglas County grant to
James Lee Dog Park. Trustee Siegman seconded. Motion passed 4-0. Ayes by Chairman Dunham,
Vice Chairman Stulac, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano and Trustee Siegman. Trustee Garcia
abstained from voting.

Recess: 8:01PM
Reconvene: 8:09PM

9. Discussion only to earmark Indian Hills funds/reserves and future returns from
investments to replace and enhance underutilized park grass areas in support of other
ongoing water conservation initiatives.

Trustee Garcia just wants the board to start thinking about putting away some money for this
each year. The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated she is big on water conservation, but she is also big
on grass, and she hopes that if this proceeds it will be done with caution. Please don’t eliminate
every blade of grass in the district, she loves the desert but does like the grass as well. Lynn stated
she hopes the board would keep that in mind to leave some grass.

10. Discussion only regarding creating a depreciation schedule for tennis court
maintenance/resurfacing and setting aside the necessary funds annually vs. approving
one-time capital outlays from parks budget.

Trustee Garcia just wants the board to start thinking about putting away some money for this
each year. The board briefly discussed this item.

Minutes of the June 21, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-3-

5



Public comment: none

11.  Discussion only regarding possible pay to play fee structure to offset rising costs of
periodic maintenance to Tennis Courts.
Trustee Garcia explained his ideas to the board. The board briefly discussed this item.

Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated has anyone thought about allowing residents to
purchase a membership to use the facilities.

12. Discussion to inform the Board of an emergency purchase to hire a contractor for a
water line replacement and paving project on Long Drive due to a leak.
General Manager Chris Johnson explained this project to the board.

Public comment: none

13.  Discussion and possible action to approve a quote from ESRI in the amount of $5,150
1% year, $5,300 2" year and $5,500 3+¢ year for the purchase of a GIS program.
General Manager Chris Johnson explained the GID program to the board. The board briefly
discussed this item.

Public comment: none

Vice Chairman Stulac motioned to approve a quote from ESRI in the amount of $5,150 I*' year,
$5,300 2" year and $5,500 3 year for the purchase of a GIS program. Trustee Garcia seconded,
Motion passed unanimously.

14.  Reports to the Board:

a. General Manager Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed his report with the board.
1. Administrative
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Administrative report
with the board.
2. Water
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Water report with the
board.
3. Wastewater
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Wastewater report with
the board.
b. District Accountant Report
General Manager Chris Johnson reviewed the Accountant report with the
board.
c. Engineer Report
District Engineer Tim Russell stated he has been working on the Indian
Drive sewer redesign project and will bring that back to the board. The
drainage wash pad for the shop has been a challenge, prices came in a lot

Minutes of the June 21, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-4-

Qp



higher than anticipated, we will also bring this back to the board. He has
been helping Chris out with the emergency repair. Tim stated that he has
Collin here tonight he is stepping down as the District Engineer Collin will
be taking his place, he is not going anywhere and will still be here for a
resource it is just time to pass the torch.

d. Attorney Report
District Counsel Chuck Zumpft stated he has nothing to report.

Public comment: Resident Lynn Dement stated that Douglas County came in and sprayed down
Mica. Lynn stated we need to move the traffic speed sign around for a while to different locations.
Your data might show speeding was higher the first day it was out and then decreased. Moving it
might give you more information.

15.  Discussion and possible action to approve Draft Minutes from the May 17, 2023, Board
Meeting.

Public comment: none

Vice Chairman Stulac motioned to approve Draft Minutes from the May 17, 2023, Board
Meeting. Trustee Garcia seconded. Motion carried unanimously.

16.  Chairman and Trustees Reports, Correspondence
Under this item the Board Members will briefly identify relevant communications
received by them before the meeting, or meetings attended, or potential business of the
district. No action will be taken on any of these items, but a member may request
such item or topic be placed on a future agenda.

17.  Adjournment
Trustee Garcia motioned to adjourn the meeting. Vice Chairman Stulac seconded. Motion carried
3-0.

Ayes by Chairman Dunham, Secretary/Treasurer Lufrano, and Trustee Garcia. Vice Chairman
Stulac and Trustee Siegman were absent from the meeting.

Meeting adjourned at 9:31P.M.

Minutes of the June 21, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-5-

A7



FINAL APPROVED MINUTES AS PRESENTED

Secretary/Treasurer
Vicky Lufrano

Minutes of the June 21, 2023, Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
-6 -

Ay



